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The Forman Martin Home, originally constructed in 1830 and
expanded in 1850, appears now much as it does in this turn-
of-the-century photograph. Because just three families have
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Forman Martin Home provides link
to Edison’s-ruraf,

Family oversaw
apple operation
from old road

By Kelly Sheehan

EDISON — Built in two
stages, 1830 and 1850, the For-
man Martin Home at 30 Old
Post Road serves as a re-
minder of the township’s agri-
cultural past.

Forman Martin and his wifle
Hanna built their home on the
oldest road in eastern New
Jersey - Old Post Road. From
this home, they would oversee
the production of apple prod-
ucts. Farmers from throughout

the area would bring their ap-
ples to Martin's mills along
Old Post Road where their
produce would be made into
applesauce and cider.

The Martins' home over-

looked several barmms and
barnlike structures where the
apples were processed for
sale. It is said that some of the
homes which today lie across
Old Post Road from the Martin
House have the foundations of
these Martin barns as founda-
tions for their homes.

Old photographs and neigh-
bors' recollections reveal that
the Martins were not them-
selves farmers, nor did they
tend any apple orchards; how-
ever, they owned and operated
the apple processing facilities
on Old Post Road,

Several generations of the
Martins lived in the Pis-
catawaytown area over the
years. Forman Martin was a
direct descendant of John
Martin, who, along with the
Dunhams, Bonhams, Stelles,
Hulls and Randolphs were the
original settlers of the town-
ship.

Many of the Martin family
are buried in the nearby cem-
etery surrounding the St
James Episcopal Church,
Woodbridge Avenue. As is true
with many old tombstones, the
granite structures are accurate

chronicles of family relation-
ships, fortunes and dates.
Many a genealogist is grateful
for the information revealed
by these old grave markers.

The last two Martin “boys”
— as they are referred to by
long-time residents — were
John and Oscar Martin. Both
were said to have been bache-
lors and lived in the home
well into the 1960s, and a Mrs.
Hardy was the last member of
the family to have resided on
Old Post Road.

As the years took their toll
on Mrs. Hardy, a kind neigh-
bor would visit regularly and
look in after her health. Mrs.
Hardy was kind and generous
and would always insist that
this neighbor “help herself” to
one of the antique pieces of
furniture in her home. After
many polite “thank you, but no
thank you” repiles from the
neighbor, Mrs. Hardy became
quite insistent that she some-
how repay the neighbor for
her kindness, and the neigh-
bor decided to take the first
thing she saw — a Martin fam-
ily photo album.

Many of the photos were
taken in the mid-1800s and
early 1900s. They were very
formal affairs and -carefully
posed amid Victorian back-
drops. Names of the subjects
and their ages are carefully
recorded on the reverse of the
pictures which have been a
boon in retracing not only the
history of the Martin family,
but of those who lived in the
home. ‘

Today, many of the photos
adorn the hallway of the Mar-
tin house. It is felt that these
original dwellers still have an
important place in the grand
old home.

Architecturally, the house is
described as “carpenter’s got-
hic with Italianate detailing.”

Inside, the rooms are very
large, bright and open. The
floors are wide-plank oak
boards and all the doors and
windows are the originals.

The 1850 addition — the
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lived in the house over the years, few changes have been
made to the structure. It is the current residence of David
Sheehan, president of the Edison Township Historical Society.

agricultural past

left-most portion of the struc-
ture — has a tree trunk as its
main beam. A common prac-
tice in those days, the builders
would lay a sturdy, straight
tree trunk on its side and run
lumber, beams and posts from
the tree trunk to provide for
flooring. Structural engineers
report that the tree trunk is in
the process of petrificationand
should serve well in the future
as a sturdy part of the under-
pinnings of the home.

Since only three families
have ever lived in the home,
very few changes have been
made to the original structure.

The kitchen boasts a large,
tall fireplace in which one can
find a crane — a common de-
vice used to handle kettles
from over an open fire. It was
an L-shaped piece of metal
which swung freely over the
fire.

There are also fireplaces in
the dining room and the living
room. The fireplace in the liv-
ing room is not functional to-
day, as the chimney is used to
vent the gas heat system.
Building codes of today do not
permit “sharing” a chimney
for two seperate heating
sources. The dining room’s
fireplace is equipped with a
wood-burning stove as is the
kitchen's.

Families of means in the
early and mid-1800s viewed
open-hearth fireplaces as a
heating supply for poor fami-
lies. Thus, in an attempt to re-
tain the charm amd of a man-
tle and fireplace but insure
the more “modern” and even
heat of coal and wood-burning
stoves, the two were often
combined with a mantle piece
surrounding a wood-burning
stove. The dining room and
kitchen fireplaces have been
recently restored to reflect
that earlier practice.

Ceilings on the first floor are
9% feet high in some rooms
and 10 feet in others. This, too,
was a very formal indication of
the prosperity of the home-
builders. Heating such large

rooms was (and still is) an ex-
pensive undertaking. Upstairs,
however, the ceilings are
much lower (about 7 feet high).
This was to encourage the
heat to stay at a height where
it served the occupants best
during the night Flooring on
the second floor is also wide
oak plank and has been re-
stored.

Neighbors indicate that
electricity was not installed in
the home until the 1930s.
There were fears that since
this was the tallest structure in
the neighborhood that it would
be subject to being struck by
lightning. If electrical wires
were strung throughout the
walls of the homes, the Mar-
tins apparently worried that
house would immediately be-
come engulfed in flames.

Attesting to their worry were
four lightning rods and wires
which, until recently, were
found atop the home's three
chimneys and along the peaks
of the roof.

The cellar is under only a
portion of the house and fea-
tures a dirt floor. The present
owners have had pebble stone
placed over the dirt and its
current use is as a photogra-
phy dark room. The full attic
also has wide-plank oak floor-
ing.

There are three bedrooms
on the second floor.

Next to the chimney in the
dining room is a tall, narrow
closet. Historians have pointed
out that such cabinets were
used to store handguns and
gun powder.

Although not included on
the National Register of His-
toric Places, the Forman Mar-
tin Home is a landmark which
provides links to the architect-
ual, cultural and agricultural
history of Edison Township.

Kelly Sheehan is a member of
the Edison Township Historical
Society, and this article is one
i o series by , ;
Jor the Metuchen-Edison Re-
view on the history of the area.




For years, St. James Episcopal
Church was reférred to as "The
English Church" reflecting its
/¢ 1 04Bng Anglican heritage. The parish
~a®as established in 1694. As early
i as 1703, there are published
a > ords of sermons delivered here
\“% Rev. George Keith. The church's
won, ¥ 1 bell was cast in Leeds, England
. (57734 and was brought here in 1702. It
(77 is recognized as the oldest purely
colonial church in the Episcopal
Diocese of New Jersey. It was
selected by the Historic American
Buildings Survey for its excep-
tional historic and architectural
interest. Inside is found a three-
tiered pulpit. From it, Samuel
Seabury, the first Episcopal Bishop
in America and John Croes, the
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"SAIVT JAMES EPISCOPAL CHURCH" first Bishop of New Jersey preached.
CA\ 2136 Woodbridge Avenue Rev, William Gerhart is the current
Rector of St. James.




Noted thr ut history as an active
gathering place for the commmity, it
was a mustering area for the militia
during the Revolutionary War; the "heart
of town' while 'Old Town Hall" was the
site of all mmnicipal business. Today
it boasts ballfields, open areas for
golfers, jogging enthusiasts, summer
playgrounds and an accessible greenspace
to meet with playmates, friends and
neighbors.
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Churches

Saint James Church's Memorial Garden is
located immediately to the right of the
church building. A memorial tree and
plaque are shown in this picture. The
plaque is dedicated to Capt. Ronald
Mayercik, a parishioner, missing-in-act
in Viet Nam. Behind the garden area is
the mounded gravesite of six British
=~ : soldiers killed in a skirmish during the
%% Revolutionary War at the present day
intersection of Woodbridge Avenue and

%'~ = 01d Post Road.
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NEW DOVER UNITED METHODIST CHURCH. EDISON
Built in 1849

&‘sson: \'\"ss‘\':or';c.3o‘\\A‘sngs -

Sives

EDISON — Township historic and cul-
tural sites included on the list compiled by
Aurora Bacon of the Edison Public Li-
brary include the following

Thomas A. Edison Tower on Christie
Street. Edison Municipal Building; the
Main Edison Library, 340 Plainfield Ave. ;
the North Edison Branch Library, Grove
Avenue and Library Place; the Clara Bar-
ton Branch Library, Pleasant and Hoover
Avenues: John P. Stevens High School,
Grove Avenue, and Edison High School,
Boulevard of the Eagles

Also, the St. James Episcopal Church,
built in 1835, and its cemetery, established
in the 1600s, at 2136 Woodbridge Ave.. the
Stelton Baptist Church, 1925, and ceme-
tery. 1740s, 334 Plainfield Ave.; the New
Dover United Methodist Church and ceme-
tery, 1849, New Dover Road . the Bonham-
town Grace Reformed Church, 1875, at
2195 Woodbridge Ave.

Restorations inciude the Benjamin Sho-
twell home, built in 1775, now the Klingler
residence at 26 Runyons Lane. the Car-
riage House, now the Trapp residence, 79
Cedar St.. the Forman Martin Estate,
built around 1829, now the Dipple resi-
dence at 30 Old Post Road: the John Dun-
ham Estate, built around 1775. now the Pu-
kash residence at 33 Parkway. the Old
Hickory Farm, built around 176Z. now the

in Edison listed

McDermott residence on Inman Avenue,
and the N.J. Home for Disabled Scldiers,
built 1930, in Menlo Park.

Historic markers include the Bonham-
town School, 1908, at 2825 Woodbridge
Ave . the Piscatawaytown School, 1913, at
2060 Woodbridge Ave.; the Stelton School,
1923, Plainfield Avenue; the Oak Tree
School, 1925, Oak Tree Road: the Old
Town Hall on Park Way: the Oak Tree
Volunteer Fire Co. No. 1, 1928 on Oak'
Tree Road

Markers are also at the following
homes: the 1752 Van Buskirk home now
the Graber residence, 744 New Dover
Road: the Yelencsics home, 1887, now the
Edison Recreation Building on Wood-
bridge Avenue . the 1811 Mook residence,
4001 Park Ave the Martin home. 1886,
now the Dickenson residence on Mill
Road . the Bonhamtown Union Hotel, 1912,
now Bo's Den; the 1917 Raritan Arsenal;
Camp Kilmer, built in the 1930s: the Hut-
chinson residence, circa 1780, at 2109
Woodbridge Ave. ; the Fitzrandolnh house,
circa 1850, now the Gough home, 2111
Woodbridge Ave : and the Beehive Oven
House, circa 1740. now the Warren resi-
dence at 1032 Featherbed Lane.

Some of the sites will be selected by the
Middlesex County Cultural and Heritage
Commission for inclusion on a county his-
wnc’ map
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History can be found in various sites

Structures in Edison provide
‘museum’ for glimpse of past

By David C. Sheehan

EDISON — Edison cannot boast
of a museum dedicated to show-
casing the rich and diverse cul-
tural, historical and architectural
history of the township.

The Edison Memorial Tower
serves as an admirable tribute to
the community’s most famous res-
ident, Thomas A. Edison. The mu-
seum located on the grounds of
the tower is filled with memora-
bilia and artifacts of the famed
inventor and rightfully focuses on
his inventions and his many mar-
velous accomplishments in Edison
in the 1870s and 1880s. Its focus,
however, is not Edison the town-
ship.

How, then, can one gain insight
into the history of the township?
Because the township itself serves
as a living museum, one excellent
way is to tour the places where
historical buildings and other
sites are located.

Although a tour of the 32-
square-mile township would seem
a formidable task, it can be made
manageable, enjoyable, educa-
tional and even inspiring if the
tour is plotted properly. In 1983,
the Edison Township Historical
Society set out to plot such a tour.

It was the desire of the society
to showcase the heritage of the
township in a format wherein the
tour of the places of historical and
architectural interest could be ac-
complished in an afternoon’s
drive through Edison.

The tour features both public
and private sites. The Edison Me-

their privacy.

The tour begins at the Stelton
Baptist Church, 324 Plainfield Av-
enue, near the Edison Main Li-
brary. Stelton Baptist Church was
formed in the spring

of 1689 and
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have been the first school in the
township to be equipped with a
telephone.

Heading east toward Wood-
bridge Township on Woodbridge
Avenue and a short distance from
Piscatawaytown School, you will
find the E.G. Gough Home at 2111
Woodbridge Avenue.

It is a three-bay, two-story clap-
board structure which was built in
the first half of the 19th century as
the home of the Fitzrandolph
family — one of the first families
in the area. weR s

Directly across the street from
the Gough home is the site of St
James Episcopal Church, de-
scribed as one of the “crown jew-
els” of historic sites in the region.
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The ‘orman Martin House at 30 Old Post Road
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At 33 Park Way, on the Com-
mons, is the Col. John Dunham
Estate, circa 1732. It was the
home of the pioneer Dunham
family. George Washington, Ale-
xander Hamilton and some of
their troops ate a breakfast in the
home on July 10, 1778.

Follow Woodbridge Avenue to
Old Post Road and turn left Old
Post Road is the oldest road in
eastern New Jersey and was used
by President Washington on his
journey through Edison to attend
his first inauguration in New
York

At 30 Old Post Road is the
Forman Martin Home. Built by
Hanna and Forman Martin in two
stages, 1830 and 1850, the home
had been occupied continuously
by the Martin family until the late
1960s. It features carpenters Got-
hic scrollwork on the eaves and
porches and is highlighted with
Italianate detailing.

Return to Woodbridge Avenue
and head east to the Bonhamtown
historic district At Woodbridge
Avenue and Grace Street, near
the old Raritan Arsenal and what
is now Middlesex County College,
wﬂnd Bonhamtown Grace

Circa 1875, the building is a
good example of vernacular Got-
hic architecture as evidenced by
the steep gable and pointed win-

ing, it was built in 1908. A neoclas-
sical colonial revival school build-
ing, it is an excellent example of
the use of indigenous brick in a
publie structure. The fine archi-
tectural details include ionic col-
umns supporting an elliptical ped-
iment, lenette windows in a pedi-
mented gable, corner quoins and
a hip roof with massed chimneys.
Further east at 2965 Wood-
bridge Avenue is the Yelencsics
Homestead. Built in 1887, it was
the birthplace and family resi-
dence of Edison’s longtime mayor,
the late Anthony M. Yelencsics.
_The site was used by the Army

, Edison, was built in two stages, 1830 and 1850,
the eaves and porches.

during World War II and had
been used also as the offices of
the township Department of Parks
and Recreation. It presently is
used as the township Senior Citi-
zens Activity Center.

From the Yelencsics Home-
stead, the tour reaches its conclu-
sion at the Edison Memorial
Tower and Christie Street.

Located in the Menlo Park his-
toric district off Route 27, this is
where you will find a 131-foot-tall
concrete tower built on the spot
where Thomas A. Edison invented -
more than 500 of his patented
items. The tower, listed on the
National Register of Historic
Places, is made of Portland ce-
ment (an Edison invention) and
has a replica bulb, 13 feet in di-
ameter, atop the structure.

A light bulb in the base of the
tower burns continuously in honor
of Edison’s accomplishments at
the site.

nity, it serves as a pleasant and
the township.
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Edison: Chucehes

Gadzooks, has the Stelton Baptist Church changed!

By GWEN SHRIFT
Home News stat! writer \s
L n LS h 1

EDISON — Under the sun and air of 2 blue
and gold morning in June lay the stern elders
of the Stelton Bapust Church, asieep in their
old churchyard

Inside the little house of worship on Plain-
field :Avenue, their heirs of the spirit, and a
few of the flesh, were at prayer yesterday. The
'words and melody of the hymn “Rise Up, Oh
‘Men of God” floated through stained-glass
church windows open to the congregation's
15,496th Sunday morning

As worship ended yesterday, men in white
Colonial wigs, breeches, and ruffied jabots
opened the church doors to allow similarly
clad men and women in long dresses and Mar-
tha Washington caps to drift down the steps,
pausing to chat with their pastor, Rev. Richard
Cook. and to pose for a snapshot or two.

The costumes were a tribute to the fact
that on the fourth Sunday in June of 1689, six
God-fearing men founded the First Day Baptist
‘Society of Piscataway, the predecessor organi-
‘gation to today's Stelton Baptist Church. The

t church building is the fourth to shelter
congregation on land first purchased by it
, ‘61.0. earlier, the church was located on

Elizabeth Stout, 78, sat to Miss
Potts’ right at a special-church an-
niversary dinner yesterday at
Cryan's restaurant in Metuchen.

Woodbridge Avenue.

The Abraham Van Gilders, the Randolph
Drakes. and the Stelle Pyatts who ate buried
next to the church would recognize little of
what their spiritual community has become
since they left its embrace in the first half of
the last century. Some of the living, indeed,
bave learned to turn the other cheek when
progress slaps them on the face.

As the 18th century gave way to the 18th,
church elders lived to “reprove, rebuke and
remove from the church” those who were
“walking disorderly or not according to gos-
pel,” according to present-day church mem-
bers.

One “walked disorderly” if one went to-a
race track, an establishment that sold liquor or
a place where people openly engaged in shuf-
fleboard — rules of conduct not considered
burdensome to a community whose members
were willing to be baptized in the Raritan Riv-
er on March days when ice floes choked the
water.

One such fearless Christian baptized on a
bitterly cold day in 1843 was Teressa Davis,
whose great-great-granddaughter, Nellie Potts,
is a member of the congregation today. Miss
Potts, 92, also a descendant of Edmond Dun-
ham, one of the six original founders, ran the

Sunday school at the church for 35 years.

In the heyday of moral strictness, drinking
and smoking were far more serious breaches
of conduct in the Baptist community than they
are ‘oday. As late as 1845, the Stelton Baptist
Church protested a proposal to build a race-
track in what is now the Washington Park sec-
tion of Edison, and fought against granting a
liquor license to an establishment near the
church now known as Bottle & Cork Liquors.

Cook and others of the congregation ac-
knowledge that rules are not as tight these
days, and even draw amusement from the rela-
tively tyrannical tactics of the past. “It's just a
shame people can't read the history,” said
Ruth Smith, head of the church's anniversary
committee. “It gets to be hilarious. If you were
seen at a horse race, you'd be kicked out of
church. There should be a happy medium ... 1]
don’t know what we'd do today (with such strict
rules), the church would be empty.”

But Miss Potts has her reservations about
modernity among churchgoers. “I'm not too
happy with it. 1 suppose you have to call it
progress ... It's quite a different world than
the world I grew up in. You have to go along

with it," she said.
See CHURCH, Page B2
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some cost. Church enrollment has
declined from 350 members in
1960 to about 150, largely because
of its missionary work christening
new congregations, Cook said.




ST. JAMES EPISCOPAL CHURCH, EDISON

Built in 1835

Edison’s past
being compiled

By ANITA SUSI
News Tribune staff writer

EDISON — One of the most vital tasks
of a librarian is the job of documenting
and preserving the history of a community
for present and future generations.

Toward that end, Aurora Bacon, head li-
brarian at the Edison Public Library, re-
cently finished compiling a formidable list
of local cultural and historic sites, some of
which will be included on a countywide
map to be published by the Middlesex
County Cultural and Heritage Commission
early next year.

Mrs. Bacon, who came to Edison six
years ago from Staten Island, admitted
she didn't really know much about the
township's past before undertaking the
project.

“There's not a good history of the town
in the library,”" she pointed out, adding
that she had gleaned most of her informa-
tion from *'Notes on the History of Pisca-
tawaytown,” a 1937 volume compiled by
Agnes Glen Saunders, one of the first
township librarians, along with Louis
DuBois.

She also learned that Edison has no his-
torical society of its own, but instead is in-
cluded in the.Metuchen Regional Histori-
cal Society.

“Even though name ‘Metuchen’ does
confuse things, they seem willing to work
toward Edison historic goals,”™ she
reported after attending a recent
meeting.

Nevertheless, Mrs. Bacon's research
leads her to conclude that the township re-
quires the services of a fullime, profes-
sional historian who could compile a bel-
ter history of Edison, particularly, the
last 100 years

“After tryung to find the answers to my
questions and not knowing where Lo go, |
found my best source to be senior citi-
zens," Mrs. Bacon said. One local woman,
Dora Engel, led her to the historic Martin
Dock house on Silverlake Avenue. The
bulding, now occupied by the Sheer fami-
ly. is believed to be the oldest house in the

and may be 300 years old.

Although admittedly lacking qualifica-
tions as an architect or historian, Mrs.
Bacon personally visited the Dock house
as well as every one of the 34 homes, his-

toric markers and sites included in her
submission to the county heritage com-
mission's map project.

This involved a lot of knocking on doors
as well as visits to elderly residents who
still give directions by landmarks that no
longer exisi, Mrs. Bacon said, recalling
the time she was told to make a turn near
the no-longer-existent Hadley Airport,
which is now the site of the Middlesex
Mall.

Other people told her of swimming in
the Raritan River and watching as road
crews worked on constructing U.S. High-
way 1, many years ago.

When she first started tackling the proj-
ect, she sometimes met with an attitude
that Edison really didn't have much of a
past, but dh:cgvered “some things that are

For instance, did you know that Christie
Street was the first street in the world to
be lit up with Thomas A. Edison’s electric
lights, a hundred years ago”

Or that Old Post Road was the earliest
public road in eastern New Jersey, and
was used by President Washington as he
traveled through Bonhamtown on the way
to the nation's first Inauguration”

The first session of lesex County
Court was held in Edison in June of 1683,
and thousands of years earlier, glaciers
covered this part of the world.

A tombstone in the cemetery of St.
James Episcopal Church is listed in the Li-
brary of Congress, and bears the names of
two lads who succumbed to mushroom
poisoning many years ago.

As a followup to the map project, for
which lists were completed on dept. 30,
Mrs. Bacon is now working to gather Edis-
on “firsts,” the most obvious one being
the many inventions of Thomas Edison
during his years in Menlo Park, Convinced
that there may be other firsts, Mrs. Bacon
asks people with such information on not-
able persons and notable events happening
here to contact her at the library.

She is also working closely with the cul-
tural and heritage commussion on an oral
listory project which involves lape re-
cording the reminiscences of longlime
township residents

“This history will be lost to us complete-
ly if we don't Lap our resources,” she said.
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Historic sites in Edison listed

Built in 1849

EDISON — Township historic and cul-
tural sites included on the iist compiled by
Aurora Bacon of the Edison Public Li-
brary include the following

Thomas A Edison Tower on Chrisue
Street, Edison Municipa! Building, the
Main Edison Library, 340 Plainfield Ave.;
the North Edison Branch Library, Grove
Avenue and Library Place; the Clara Bar-
ton Branch Library, Pleasant an¢ Hoover
Avenues: John P. Stevens High School.
Grove Avenue. and Edison High Schoo!.
Boulevard of the Eagles

Alsc, the St. James Episcopal Churet,
built in 1835, and its cemetery, established
in the 1600s, at 2136 Woodbridge Ave ; the
Stelton Baptist Church, 1925, and ceme-
tery. 1740s, 334 Plainfield Ave.; the New

Dover United Methodist Church and ceme-

tery, 1849, New Dover Road. the Bonham-
town Grace Reformed Church, 1875, at
2195 Woodbridge Ave.

Restorations include the Benjamin Sho-
twell home, built in 1775, now the Klingler
residence at 26 Runyons Lane. the Car-
riage House, now the Trapp residence. 7§
Cedar St.; the Forman Martin Estate,
built around 1829. now the Dipple resi-
dence at 30 Old Post Road: the John Dun-

ham Estate. built around 1775. now the Pu-

kash residence at 33 Parkway: the Old
Hickory Farm, buiit around 1762. now the

McDermotl residence on Inman Avenue,
and the N.J. Home for Disabled Scldiers,
built 1930. in Menlo Park

Historic markers include the Bonham-
town School. 1908. at 2825 Woodbridge
Ave . the Piscatawavtown School. 1213, at
2060 Woodbridge Ave. : the Stelton School,
1923, Plainfield Avenue. the Oak Tree
School., 1925. Oak Tree Road:. the Old
Town Hall on Park Way: the Oak Tree
Volunteer Fire Co No 1, 192¢ on Oak®
Tree Road

Markers are aiso 2t the following
homes the 1752 Van Buskirk home now
the Graber residence 744 New Dover
Road: the Yelencsics home. 1887, now the
Edisor Recreatcn Builiding on Woed
bridge Avenut the 1811 Mook residence,
&) Park Av¢ ihe Martin home. 1886,
now the Dickenson residence on Mill
Road . the Bonhamtown Union Hote!, 1912,
now Bo's Den: the 1917 Raritan Arsenal;
Camp Kilmer, built in the 1930s: the Hut-
chinson residence. circa 1780, at 2109
Woodbridge Ave ; the Fitzrandolnh house,
circa 1850. now the Gough home, 2111
Woodbridge Ave : and the Beehive Oven
House, circa 1740. now the Warren resi-
dence at 103 Featherbed Lane.

Some of the sites will be selected by the
Middlesex County Cultural and Heritage
Commission for inclusion on a county his-
xanc’ map




Antique photographs of both the
home and its original occupants
grace the walls of the Sheehan
home. Among the photos are those
of the Martin's cider mills, origi-
nally located directly across 01d
Post Road. The main beam of this
» teén room home is a large tree

} trunk in the process of petrifica-
g tion. The working fireplace in the
kitchen still has an iron arm from
{ which large kettles of soup and
stew were cooked.
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The Forman Martin House in Edison may have a gas station for a neighbor, but once it was
surrounded by fertile farmland and echoes of the Revolutionary War. [

A~

The Martin house stands out;
a bit of history amid suburbia

HO Jdslse’
EDISON — When the Sheehans first painted the vin-

Road between Route 1 and Woodbridge Avenue, com-
mands attention — a gem among the suburban sprawl.

the house, built in 1830, with a section added in 1850. '
“They were filthy rich people,” David said of the
Martins, who ran and owned an apple cider mill across

the street. Martin first acquired land in the area in 1666,

said Sheehan.

When the Sheehans originally looked into the house's
history, they thought it once overlooked apple orchards.
But the lack of apple trees across the street led Sheehan

believe “they processed apples from farmers” in the

area. The cider mill no longer exists.
In the home’s downstairs hallway, the Sheehans

have hung photographs of former residents. They got the
from a woman who used to visit the last

Other unique features of the house include a crane in
the kitchen's fireplace, where pots hung for cooking, and
a mysterious circular hole cut in a bedroom floor and
covered within a wobden disc.

“Inside there is an asbestos-lined box — and not a
penny in it," said David.

The house is located in a section of Edison called
Piscatawaytown. Although few people these days know
the section as Piscatawaytown, the surrounding area has
some unique historical features.

0ld Post Road, David points out, is the oldest road in
Middlesex County, and a graveyard near St. James Epis-
copal Church has the county’s oldest grave (Mary Jones,
1692).

Also buried in the cemetery are six men killed dur-
ing a Revolutionary War battle.

Past Premises is a weekly real estate feature.
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The Middlesex County Board of Chosen Freeholders and
Welcome t0 . visgese Cousty Cubtursl and Heritage Commission

Middlesex invite you to explore the County’s historic neighborhoods

and communities, reflecting three centuries of remarkable
County growth,

Settled originally by English, Scottish and Dutch families, Middlesex County was established
in 1683 and gained early trading importance from its central location along the Raritan River
and the siting of the Provincial capital within its boundaries in Perth Amboy. Later, numerous
skirmishes of the American Revolution were fought in Middlesex County and George
Washington with his troops frequently passed through this region.

In the 1800’s, an agricultural economy thrived as trade and commerce developed along the ex-
cellent transportation routes of the area’s rivers and on the new Delaware and Raritan Canal.
Progress into the 1900’s brought further regional development as railways and highways were
constructed through central New Jersey. Business and industrial expansion, spurred by the in-
ventions of Thomas A. Edison in Menlo Park, brought about the establishment of numerous
companies which have grown to become today’s corporate giants in the pharmaceutical,

Education has always played a significant role in the County since the 1766 charter of Queens
College, which became Rutgers, the State University with five college campuses in the New
Brunswick area. The County is also the home for the Forrestal Campus of Princeton Universi-
ty; the New Jersey College of Medicine and Dentistry; Middlesex County College in Edison;
and the County Vocational and Technical High Schools, the first vocational school system in
the United States.

Middlesex County has attained a status matched by few other counties in becoming not only a
prestigious and desirable location for business, industry and high-tech facilities, but also as an
attractive and ideal place to live.

Stroll through the tree-shaded strects where the architectural treasures of previous centuries wait to be discovered.
Trace the vital links to the historic roots of the commaunities of East Brunswick, Edison, Milltown, New Brumswick

18d Woodbridge.

Each self-guided tour brochure festares both pablic sites which weicome visitors during open bours and residential
streets where private bomeownen kave preserved their unique structures with care. Please note that the private bomes
are not open to the public and it Is requested that their privacy be respected.

The historical socleties of each community weicome inquiries about their historic neighborhoods, programs, activities
aad volunteer opportunities.

The Middlesex County Cultural and Heritage Commission promotes preservation endeavors
and local and county history. To this end, the Commission has established the Middlesex
County Coalition of Historic Organizations and Site Owners (MCCHOSO), a network and con-
Jederation of organizations and individuals. Please call or write the Commission to obtain ad-
ditional copies of the walking tour brochures or to receive further information on the historic
sites and cultural events in Middlesex County.

Middiesex County Cultural and Heritage Commission, 841 Georges Road, North Branswick, NJ
08962, (201) 745-4489.



Edison

Edison Tower

Edison Township, formerly known as Raritan,
was first settled in the late 1600's, when it was
part of Woodbridge and Piscataway. Members
of the FitzRandolph Family from the colony of
Massachusetts, were among the first settiers in
1668,

The Old Post Road, the earliest public road in
Eastern New Jersey, passed through Edison
Township and was said to have been used by
General Washington as he weat through cen-
tral New Jersey on the way to his inauguration
in New York City.

The Bonhamtown area of Edison on the Post
Road is named after Nicholas Bonham, a
frecholder from 1682-83. This hamlet is said
to have been the site of an old Indian village
and later a Continental camp and battle
ground during the revolution. Bonhamiown
also served as the seat of justice for Middiesex
and Somerset Counties as early as 1633. By
1834, the village featured 10 or 12 dwellings, 2
taverns, a store and school house.

The town grew in the second half of the 19th
century as the attractiveness of the rural land-
scape became more accessible with the opening
of the area’s second railroad, the Easton and
Amboy Line. By the late 1800’s, many
residents ‘“‘commuted”’ to jobs in New York
and other parts of New Jersey.

The establishment of Thomas Edison's in-
dustrial research Ilaboratory in the Menlo Park
section from 1876-1886 brought fame to the
township as it became the site for some of the
most inmovative research and manufacturing
feats of the 19th century. While there, Thomas
Edison invented over 400 patented items in-
cluding the phomograph, electric railway and
incandescent light. During the Christmas
season, Christie Street and his laboratory com-
pound were illuminated by electricity utilizing a
system of underground wires. This dramatic
display brought thousands of tourists to the
Menlo Park site. To commemorate the genius
of the “‘wizard of Menlo Park’’, the township
was resamed Edison in 1954 and today »
memorial tower stands om the site of his

Iaboratory.

Developing from a rural-residential community
in the 1920’s, Edison has grown into a major



Proceeds in the amount of $130 from a
tableau and musical performance in 1875
began the building fund for the Grace Chapel
Sunday School. Established by Miss Hannah
Manning, the Sunday school chapel was suc-
cessfully funded, constructed and dedicated in
1876. In later years, it evolved into the Grace
Reformed Church. The Gothic style of the sim-
ple brick church is expressed in the steep
gable, pointed windows and absence of other
overt ornament.

R\ ¢ x
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Bonhamtown School

{ 2825 Woodbridge Avenue
Currently renovated as a professional building,
the Bonhamtown School housed the offices of
the Edison Township Board of Education until
1980. Built in 1908, the neoclassical Colonial
Revival school building is an excellent exam-
ple of the use of indigenous brick in a public
structure. The fine architectural details in-
clude; lonic columns supporting an elliptical
pediment, lunette window in a pedimented
gable, corner quoins, and hip roof with
massed chimneys.

Colonel John Dunham House

33 Park Way

Colonel John Dunham resided in this ¢. 1775
clapboard home on the Commons. The Colonel
was a member of the prominent Dunham fami-
ly who were among the earliest settlers in the
Piscataway area in the late 1600’s. The home
today is a private residence.

HISTORICSTRQLL
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neighborhood to another.

5 Old Post Road

The Old Post Road was the earliest public
road in eastern New Jersey. Public roads link:
ing the villages and crossroads were the only
means for traveling across New Jersey in the
late 1700's. Most often the roadbeds were
rocky and deeply rutted making journeys a

minarahla and avan havasdaiie avnarianna In
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1789, George Washington traveled on the Old
Post Road as it wound through Piscataway-
town, Bonhamtown and Woodbridge, while
on route to his Presidential inaguration

in New York.

L

Edison Commons
Park Way

A common meeting place for the original set-
tiers of the area, the Commons is now a
municipal park. During the Revolutionary War,
the militia mustered on the Commons to prac-
tice and drill with cannons and the weapons
of that era. The “Old Town Hall” on the Com-
mons was erected in the 1800's as the first
municipal building and meeting hall for the
small agricultural community. The hall con-
tinued to be used as the township municipal
building and police headquarters until the
1930's when the offices were moved to a
new facility.Today, Edison residents and
organizations utilize the building as a conve-

nient meeting place.

EDISON

Edison is a large township which ismade up of smaller historic neighborhoods
and communities, such as Piscatewaytown and Bonhamtown in the
southern end of the township. Viitors will need to drive from one

MENLO PARK

The Cemetery at St. James
Surrounding the St. James Episcopal Church
is a large cemetery which contains the oldest
marked grave in Middiesex County, that of
Mrs. Mary Jones who died in 1693, Another
tombstone, dated 1695, chronicles the deaths
of two young brothers, the Hoopars, who suc-
cumbed from eating poisonous mushrooms. A
mound marks the gravesite of six British
soldiers who were killed in a Revolutionary
War skirmish at the present day intersection
of Woodbridge Avenue and Old Post Road. The
St. James Memorial Garden is located to the
right of the church. A memorial tree and pla-
que are dedicated to the memory of Captain
Ronald Mayercik, a parishioner who is
missing-in-action in Vietnam.

Forman Martin House
30 Old Post Road

Construction of the Forman and Hannah Martin
home was completed in two stages; the first
in 1830, the second in 1850, on land across
the street from their brandy and cider mills.
The estate overlooked the vast apple orchards
necessary for cider production. The Martin
family resided in the home continuously until
the 1960's. Among the distinctive details of
the Italianate structure are bracketed cornices,
jigsaw porchelements and an interior beam
that is a large tree trunk in the process of
petrification. It is still a private residence.

Thomas A. Edison
Memorial Tower
Christie Street

The Edison Tower is in the northern, Menlo
Park section of Edison Township, off Route 27
(Lincoin Highway.) The Memorial Tower was
buiit in 1937 on the exact spot where
Thomas Edison's research laboratory stood
from 1876-1886. Over 400 patented inven-
tions were created there by Edison and his
scientific team, including the phonograph,
incandescent electric lamp and its method

of distribution to homes, carbon telephone
transmitter and electric traction railway.
Edison's scientific methodology revolutionized
science, technology and industry. The removal
by Henry Ford of all the buildings associated
with Edison's early career in Menlo Park to
Dearborn, Michigan, necessitated the installa-
tion of a memorial structure. The Edison
Tower is one of the finest examples of an Art
Deco structure in New Jersey. An amber glass
replica of an incandescent lamp, weighing 8
tons, tops the 131 foot high cement tower.
An eternal light in the tower base com-
memorates the invention of the first practical
incandescent lamp. A small museum and gift
shop houses Edison memorabilia, light bulbs,
models, phonographs and letters.

Open Wednesdays - Friday, 12:30-4 p.m.;
Saturday, Sunday, 12:30-4:30 p.m. Also open
on Tuesdays, 12:30-4 p.m., during June, July
and August. Guided tours by

handicap access. (201) 549-3299 or (201)
287-0900, Ext. 265. The tower is ad-
ministered by the Edison Township Recreation
Department. State and National Registers of
Historic Places.

St. James Episcopal Church

2136 Woodbridge Avenue

The church is the oldest institution in Edison
with its congregation tracing its establishment
to 1694. A charter was granted to the con-
gregation by Queen Anne of England in 1704,
The bell was cast in Leeds, England and
brought to Edison in 1702. In 1724, a
building known as the “White Church” was
built on land already in use as a burying
ground, with stones dating to 1693. The
church, which was used as a barracks by the
British during the Revolutionary War, was
later destroyed during the fighting in 1777. Its

replacement, built in 1792, was destroyed by
a tornado in 1835. It was rebuilt from 1836

to 1837 using as much of the original fixtures
and fittings as possible and this is the struc-
ture seen today.

St. James is a well-preserved combination of
Greek and Gothic Revival architecture. The
Greek Revival style is reflected in the full
Doric portico and pilaster treatment of the
steeple.

e ——— e ————— |
For further information about Edison contact
Edison Township Historical Society, 328 Plain-
Jield Avenue, Edison, NJ 08820 or the Edison
Chamer of Commerce, 1974 Lincoln Highway,
P.O. Box 281, Edison, NJ 08817
(201)287-1951.

Photography Jim Pagiiia

© 1986 Middlesex County Cultural and Heritage Commission
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Thomas A. Edison Tower, Christie st.
Haln‘Edlson‘Exbrary,ABLO Plainfield Ave,

North Edison Branch Library, Grove Ave. & Library Place

Clara darton Branch Library, Pleasant & Hoover Ave,

J.P, Stevens High School, Grove ave, LR
Edison High School, Blvd. of Eagles

C“URCHES‘& CEMETERIES

3t. James Episcopal Church (1835). Cemctery (1600's), 2136 Woodbridge Ave.
Stelton Baptist Church (1925). Cemetery (1740's), 334 Plainfield Ave.

New Dover United Methodist Church (1849). Cemetery (1849), New Dover Road

HBonhamton Grace Reformed Church (18767), Woodbridge hve. & Grace 35t.
Piscatawaytown Baptist Church (1875), 2195 koodbridge Ave.

RESTORATIONS :
Benjamin Shotwell Home (1775)--now the Klingler residence, 26 Runyons Lane

Carriage House (about 1857)--now the Trapp residence, 79 Cedar St, ‘

Forman Martin Estate (about 1829)--now the Dipple residence, 30 Old Post Road .
John Dunham Estate (about 1775)--now the Pukash residence, 33 Park Way

N.J. Home for Disabled Soldiers (1930), Menlo Park

0ld Hickory Farm (about 1762)--now the McDermott residence, Inman Ave,

Martin's Dock (1677)--now the Scheer residence, 162 Silverlake Ave.

Edison Municipal Building, Woodbridge Ave.,

HISTORIC MARKERS:

Bonhamton School (1908), 2825 Woodbridge Ave.

Piscatawaytown School (1913), 2060 Woodbridge Ave.

Stelton School (1923), Plainfield Ave.

Oak Tree School (1925), Oak Tree Rd.

Old Town Hall (pre 1890), Park way

Qak Tree Volunteer Fire Co., #1 (1929), Oak Tree Koad

Van Buskirk Home (1752)--now the Graber residence, 744 New Dover Road

Yelencsics Homestead (about 1887)--now the Edison Recreation Bldg., Woodbridge Ave.
Mook residence (about 1811), 4001 Park Avenue

Martin Homestead (about 1886)--now the Dickenson residence, Mill Road .
donhamton Union Hotel (1912)--now the tavern, Bo's Den

Raritan Arsenal (1917), Woodbridge Ave.

Camp Kilmer (about 1942), Plainfield Ave.

Hutchinson residence (about 1780), 2109 Woodbridge Ave.

Fitz Randolf House(about 1850)--now the Gough residenge, 2111 Uoodprxdge Ave, |
Beehive Oven House (about 1740)--now the Warren residence, 1032 Featherbed Lane
Letson House (pre 1876), Plainfield Ave.

Conover louse (about 1876)--now the Winter residence, Mill Rd, |

(Submitted 9/30/77 by Mrs, Aurora Bacon)

Edison Twp. Pub. Library
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Former residents to refurn

By JONATHAN SCHUPPE
STAFF WRITER

The subdued 15-minute car nde
mto North Edisen ended with Patnicia
Lovett's shocked voice rmging out
from the passenger’s seat. Parked on
a back road in the Robert E. Holmes
housing cmvfﬁvx. she was pointing 10-

ward the spot
EDISON where her she and
eessssseeeses  Ner husband raised

their children more
than three decades ago.

Beyond a patch of trees and a stnp
mall, Lovett could just make out the
property off Inman Avenue where
their home of 10 years once stood.

“It's a Burger King!” she shrieked.
“I can’t believe w!™

As Lovett left her car and surveved
the location, memoiies . jushed forth
of her life in Potters Crossing, a set-
tlement built by blacks on dozens of
wooded acres and farmland early this
century. In the 1960s, "70s and "80s, a
federal urban-renewal program slowly
took over the land.

Lovett grew up romping with
neighborhood children through a
nearby brook and pastures, picking
blackberries and string beans, chasing
livestock. As teen-agers they danced
in juke joints and ate chicken and ribs
at Smitty’s Barbecue. The roads were
dirt, the homes had no locks and run-
ning water was a luxury — a recon-
struction of the Southern life many of

the residents had abandoned to seck
opportunity in New Jersey.

Startling discovenes such as Love-
tt's will be repeaied hundreds of times
this week, when former Potters
Crossing residents return from all
over the countrv for the first time
since thev were forced off the land.
The homecoming was organized by
Potters Crossing residents who re-
main nearby and the Edison Housing
Authority, which has managed thc
still-unfinished urban renewai of the
area.

The reunion starts Saturday and
continues the next day at the Robert
E. Holmes apartiment complex, built
by the authority i 1959 as a place to
relocate Potters “ross'az residents.
Many still live the toc:y with their
grandchildren and people who have
moved in from nearby cities.

“We want the children to know the
history of this neighbciood,” said
Felton King, the authority’s chairman.
“A lot of land was taken, and a lot of
promises weren't kept.”

Former residents say the first
blacks settled m Potters Crossing in
1917: seven upper-middle-class fami-
lies from New York City's Harlem
who were attracted by the clean air,
open space and safety of Edison, then
named Raritan Township. They built
homes near the railroad stop at Inman
Avenue, where many commuted to
their New York City jobs. The station
was known as Potters Crossing, after

Old town comes back to lrfe

TANYA BREEN/Staff photographer

@ Sisters Deotis and Eloise McMurman sit in thexr Edisen home and remember their lives in Potters
Crossing, a settlement built by blacks early in the century and then decimated by a federal urban-re-
newal program in the 1960s, *70s and *80s.

a farmer who sold many acres of land
to the settlers.

By the 1930s, as the Great Depres-
sion gripped the country, the Potters
Crossing settlement had gained a rep-
utation for good, simple living. More
blacks migrated from New Jersey and
New York. As word spread, folks rode

the train north from Southern sta:<s,
where economic opportunities for
blacks lagged. Some bought land from
farmers, whiie others squatted on land
owned by the township or by someone
they didn't know.

The neighborhood developed into a
tightly kmit community of clapboard

shacks and two-story brick homes,
mom-and-pop stores, churches and a
community center. Families butch-
ered theirr own meat and grew their
own vegetables. Men and women
worked 1n local factories. Children at-
tended Oak Tree School and Metu-
chen High School.

=1

Local men orgamized : baseball
team, which plaved semipro black
squads from Newark and Jersey City.
A Potters Crossing civic crganization
was created to represent the neigh-
borhood’s interests to township lead-
ers.

Gradually, Potters (.m»m;, fell out
of step with the surrounding commu-
nity. The dirt roads, outdoor sewage
system and lack of electricity were re-
garded by outsiders as backward and
crude. Much of the woods and farms
around Inman Avenue and Grove Ave-
nue — then called Edwards Avenue
— remained undeveloped.

“The only hghts vou saw was a
lightning bug, really,” said Beatrice
Austin of Rahway, who was born and
raised in Potters Crossing.

In the 1950s, the towr- i started
to deny Potters Crossing residents
puinits to renovate their homes. Bad
conditions grew unlivable, and sturdy
homes fell into disrepair. In 1955, the
township declared the area “bJ_hte?"
and set up a Housing A, thonty
ovcr see a rebirth. The nei . borhood’s
name officially was changed to North
Edison.

The area was identified for a federal
Office of Housing and Urban Devel-
opment urban-renewal program,
through which 170 acres would be
transformed into low- and middle-in-
come homes, apartments, town
houses, senior-citizen housing, . a
church, a shopping center and light in-
dustry. According to the plan, resi-
dents would be relocated, their homes
would be demolished and a new set-
tlement — including houses afford-
able to the displaced — would be
bmlt,




For more than (wo decades,
through innumerable plan changes,
the community fought with the au-
thority over relocation payments, the
new developments and the under-
tones of arban renewal — critics la-
beled it “Negro removal.” While some
residents managed to sell their homes
for equitable sums and relocate
nearby, others held out. Many were
forced out by condemnation and re-
ceived payments t00 small to buy new
homes in North Edison. :
‘| In the early 1970s, residents were

offered less than $10,000 for the land
they had built homes on. New homes
then cost from $40,000 to $80,000,
according to newspaper accounts from
the 1970s and '80s.

“We were forced to sell our prop-
erty with no place to go,”" recalled T.
Daniel Steward, now a Linden resi-
dent and a minister at the Supreme
Council of the House of Jacob in North
Edison.

James M. Scott Jr., who served as
the authority’s executive director
from 1972 to 1994, argued that “the
quality of life improved” with urban
renewal. He also disputed claims that
residents did not receive their buyout
checks.

Marion Simpson Barnes, who with
her two children was forced out of a
home without running water and into
the North Edison Gardens apartment
'| complex, said urban renewal helped
her family. )

“Jt benefited me because I was able
to move my children into a new
place,” said Barnes, who now lives in
Hazlet,

Today urban renewal is complete
— except for 14 acres on the north
side of Inman Avenue slated for indus-
trial use. The Greenwood and Colo-
nial Square town houses are fully oc-
cupied, as is North Edison Gardens,
which has been renamed in honor of
the late civic leader Robert E.
Holmes. Two-story colonials with
well-trimmed lawns lie east of Grove
Avenue and a shopping center and a
senior citizen complex face Inman
Avenue.

Few Potters Crossing residents live

in the area. Most have moved to sur-
rounding communities — Piscataway,
East Brunswick, Linden, Roselle.
Others have fanned across the coun-
try.
" "When they’re asked about urban re-
newal, many say they're still frus-
trated by not being able to relocate
within their community.

“Our children don't know what they
did to this area,” Austin said.

Those feelings will be drowned out

| next weekend, when former residents

will greet old friends, trade stories,
eat Southern-style cooking and dis-
cover what's happened to their old
neighborhood.

In the crowd will be Albert Robin-
son, born and raised in Potters Cross-
ing.

After urban renewal forced him out
of his home, Robinson spent many
years away from Edison. A few years
ago he returned and moved into the
Inman Avenue senior citizens com-
plex.

"l_decidedlwouldgobacktol’ot—
tersCrossingtodieinmyhome,"he
said. "’l‘hisiswh\eremyroouu'e&\'
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New owners restoring
charm to old landmark

By DONNA KENY/

News Tribune staff
EDISON — The new

Bonhamtown tavern are w to

restore some of the

merly operated Randys

Route 27, and Arthur Laud, 32, a
local building and plumbing tontrac-
tor, recently purchased the
at 2863 Woodbridge Ave.

Originally called the Unio} Hotel,
the tavern was known as B's Den

for about the past 10 years has
been renamed the Family by
its new owners.

In a recent interview at tav-
ern, the new owners, who
the landmark for $500,000 {jom the
former owners, the Borwegin fam-
ily, said they have spent -

mately $40,000 so far on a-
tions.

The sale of the building ynd
acres of property was negotated by
Charles Frankel, assistant ger
of the Berg Realtors — Better
Homes and Gardens Mtucben
office.

The tavern refurbishment dcludes
reopening of the original enryway,
refinishing of the original ‘herry-
wood bannister adorning th stair-

easelntbeent:yhall._Ewta

tion of the

Randy’s Catering, which Dammers
had operated out of his former Route
27 restaurant for 10 years.

The building’s kitchen has been

time traffic, to free the first kitchen
for the catering service, Dammers
said.

Lauri said he would eventually
like to see arrangements made with
bus companies which make runs to
Atlantic City to have the tavern as a

The Union Hotel, which has bien
officially designated as an ric
site by Middlesex County, served as
a stage coach stop and “ -
hood watering hole,” to
David Sheehan, president of the K
son Historical Society.

Lauri said the hotel was om—
structed in the 1800s and underw:nt
extensive renovation in 1912, whea a
dance hall originally at the back of
the buﬂding was torn down. {'he

's freshly painted faqsde
bears the date 1912.

The stage coach
the area on Old Post Road, which
served as an early stage route from
New Shrewsbury to Philadelphia.

The neighborhood acquired | its
name from Nicholas Bonham, a jor-
mer freeholder, who with his wife
owned 220 acres of land in the area.
The property was alloted to them
when Bonhamtown separated from
Piscataway.

|
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Edison, N. J. 08817
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Old hotel

Structure at 2863 Woodbridge
Ave. in Edison is the former
Union Hotel in the Bonham-
town section of the township.
It also housed Bo’s Den, and
now has been bought by two
businessmen, who have ren-
amed it the Family Roost.
Photo at right shows interior
of tavern.
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Across Central New Jersey, schools have closed in
recent years, bringing senior citizens, men and women in
business and health-care experts into the classrooms
where children once spent their days learning to read
and multiply.

Older schools, no longer needed by communities
with declining enrollments, have been sold in recent
years to developers, hospitals and other parties looking
for a business venture or a home.

The former school buildings, their owners say, offer
an atmosphere with more character than the typical off-
ice buildings or residences being built in the area.

In Edison, several schools have been closed and sub-
sequently sold.

In one of them, the Bonhamtown School, Joseph C.

~ Duncan operates a personnel service offering temporary

and career The Woodbridge Avenue school,
last used as the offices of Edison’s Board of Education,
was sold in 1982 to Thomas Sharlow, who renovated the
building and later sold it to Duncan.

Personnel Line, Duncan’s business, occupies the
middle floor, Three other businesses rent space there.

“It works extremely well,” said Duncan. “The archi-
tecture is warm and pretty.”

Like other school buildings converted for non-educa-
tional uses, renovation was necessary. The building re-
quired new wiring and new plumbing, the floors were
carpeted, and heating and air-conditioning put in.

But Duncan does not plan to alter the exterior.

why communities want to preserve schools, even as com-
mercial buildings, rather than see them demolished.

A 1985 historic report for Middlesex County says the
Bonhamtown School “‘was erected as a centerpiece of the
community, with architecture reflecting pride inf and as-
pirations for the public school system.

“Its well-handled early Colonial Revival styling, and
its association with the now defunct community of Bon-
hamtown certainly make it eligible as part of a thematic
nomination for outstanding schools in Middlesex Coun-
ty,” the report says.

One interesting feature of the building, left intact, is
the large “Bonhamtown” inscription on the front of the
building — a community that exists in name.

Several years ago, Edison announced the closings of
several schools, including the Clara Barton and Oak Tree
elementary schools. The township preserved the sites.

When Clara Barton was sold, the township stipulat-
ed that it be used for senior citizens housing. Plans are
still in the works for the construction of the apartments.

For a nominal fee, Edison gave the Oak Tree School
to the Robert Wood Johnson Jr. Lifestyle Institute, an
ambulatory care facility running a variety of programs
aimed at the well, disabled and population.

Scott Gebhard, the institute’s director, said the less
sterile, less clinical nature of the building has been an
asset. Built in 1908, the building required some renova-
tion, but the institute has been able to make use of sever-
al of the features of the school, including the gym.



